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THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Good morning.
Hess, Ms. Wheeler. You®re going to call your
next witness, please.
MS. WHEELER: Yes. Hess calls Dr. Glenn
Millner.
WHEREUPON, GLENN MILLNER, PH.D., having
been duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE HEARING OFFICER: Good morning,
Dr. Millner.
THE WITNESS: Good morning.
THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Ms. Wheeler.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. WHEELER:

Q. All right. Can you please state your name
and address for the record.

A. My name is Glenn Millner. 1 live iIn Little
Rock, Arkansas.

Q. And who do you work for, Mr. Millner?

A. I work for a company called the Center for
Toxicology and Environmental Health, CTEH. 1It"s a
consulting firm in Little Rock.

Q. And what®"s your position with them?

A. I*m the principal toxicologist and one of the
founders of the company.

Q. And you also do some consulting work. This

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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consulting work is through the University of Arkansas
for Medical Sciences; i1s that right?

A. Correct. The company started out where
faculty could have startup businesses. So | serve on
the faculty in the pharmacology and toxicology
department; and I also serve iIn the college of
medicine, where | teach medical doctors, graduate
students, nursing students, about the health effects of
chemicals -- allow faculty to have startup businesses.
We started the company on the university campus. We
hatched -- we were the first in the incubator business,
the first to hatch from the business. And 17, 18 years
later it"s a viable company with about 150 employees.
And we have 14 Ph.D. toxicologists In our group.

Q. Your expertise is in the area of toxicology
and risk assessment; i1s that correct?

A. It is.

Q. Can you explain just briefly what 1t 1Is that
you do as a toxicologist In risk assessment?

A. Well, 1t"s -- really what we"re iInterested In
i1Is what chemicals are present, the nature of the
chemicals, the concentration, and the ways people could
be exposed to the chemicals.

So 1n any risk assessment, what you®re trying

to do i1s characterize what chemical constituents are

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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present, what environmental media, and then how could
people possibly be exposed to that chemical.

And there®s lots of different methodologies
out there: EPA has some; Louisiana has some; other

states have some.

Q. Tell the Panel about your educational
background.
A. So | have a bachelor®s degree in biology and

chemistry. But, really, 1 went to college to play
hockey, college hockey.

Then 1 have a master®"s degree in limnology,
and then I have a PhD in interdisciplinary toxicology
from the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences
that"s located in Little Rock.

That other school to the north that was here
Saturday, we have nothing to do with that school.

Q. So you"ve been working in this field of
toxicology for about 30 years, almost 30 years. Can
you tell the Panel a little bit about what you do?

A. Really, most of the work I do is in the, kind
of developing a niche practice In emergency response,
where there"s a need to have a toxicologist on the
ground in a chemical spill, chemical disaster, such
that we can understand the hazards of the chemical:

What are the combustion byproducts? What are the

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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chemicals at issue? We actually test the air and we
advise people about the health-protective distances you
would need for the community or workers in any type of
setting.

And I routinely work here iIn Louisiana with
the Louisiana State Police. 1 spend probably more time
In Louisiana than any state. So any time there"s a
hazmat incident involving a chemical release from a
railroad, pipeline, ship, we"ve been there: Testing
the air, working with the LDEQ folks, their hazmat
folks, sharing our data; and, you know, working with
Louisiana State Police because they"re In charge, and
on site control; and then determining what evacuations
distances are necessary and then when you can lift the
evacuation.

So 1 mainly spend my time doing that type of
thing. But in the past, | started out more iIn the
risk-assessment field. And back when they had -- you
can age yourself by 1f you know the answer to this
question, which is: Way back when all states had a TPH
value by Method 418.1. And the standard by states was
50 ppm TPH or 100 ppm TPH, 1f you remember that. So we
started looking into the scientific basis for that and
determined that there really wasn®"t any.

So | published a series of papers, "The

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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Health Effects of Metal Distillates,” and wrote several
book chapters with Dr. Nye and came up with a procedure
to evaluate the health risk of petroleum hydrocarbons
in soil and groundwater.

And then fast-forward that, after that first
series of publications came out, was accepted and used
by California, the state of Arizona; and then
Massachusetts starting developing their own method,
which was a fractionation method. And at the same time
there was this group called the TPH Criteria Working
Group, and we wrote a five-series volume about
fractionation approaches for petroleum hydrocarbon
mixtures, and that"s been adopted by DEQ.

So the TPH Criteria Working Group, which 1
served on, forms the basis for the fractionation
methods used by -- you know, under RECAP.

So I*ve been iInvolved in the early stages of
petroleum and all through today, where you really look
at the health risk of petroleum hydrocarbons in various
media.

So maybe 1t"s a long-winded answer to your
question; but, you know, 1"ve taught regulators on the
West Coast and East Coast at several conferences on how
to use those risk-assessment methods. |1 don"t think

they need my help now that they know. But back then,
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it was, you know, In i1ts infancy, and 1t"s grown
significantly since them.

Q. And you have conducted multiple risk
assessments on oil and gas remedial sites in Louisiana;
correct?

A. I have. 1°ve worked on many sites, legacy
sites; and 1°ve also worked on some of the most --
biggest crude oil issues in Louisiana, like the Murphy
Oil spill that contaminated 6500 homes. 1 was
responsible for the overall project, tested 6500 homes
for different fractions, different hydrocarbons, and
came up with cleanup criteria and remediation goals for
that Murphy Oil.

We were very proud to work with the DEQ
folks, Tom Harris and others, on coming up with a
methodology to -- because that was the first time In
history crude oil got Into somebody®s house from a
tank.

And then, since then, you know, I®ve done
literally hundreds of risk assessments. And then the
next major one was we wrote the beach cleanup risk
assessment for Deepwater Horizon.

And as you can Imagine, that had to get a lot
of state iInvolvement. So i1t was accepted by Texas,
TCEQ, the DEQ folks, and also went through Health &

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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Hospitals, Louisiana Health & Hospitals; accepted by
the state of Mississippi, ADEM Alabama, and then
Florida, and then EPA Region 4, Region 6, CDC. As you
can imagine, that document became the basis for the
beach closure for all the Gulf States during the
Deepwater Horizon spill.

Q. You"ve been accepted in a number of Louisiana
state and federal courts as an expert in toxicology and
risk assessment; i1s that correct?

A. Yes, | have.

Q. Okay. You®ve also testified at one of the
Tirst LDNR hearings under Act 3 -- the Klein Act 312 in
the Tensas Poppadoc case; Is that right?

A. I did. 1 was at the fTirst Act 312 hearing.

I think we were in a bigger room than this.

MS. WHEELER: I would like to offer and

introduce an updated version of Dr. Millner-"s

CV. It"s been distributed in the binders.

It"s also included with the plan at Tab 26.
And at this time I would like to offer

Dr. Millner as an expert iIn toxicology and

risk assessment.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Toxicology and risk

assessment?

MS. WHEELER: Yes.

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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MR. JONES: No objection.
THE HEARING OFFICER: So he"s accepted as an
expert iIn toxicology and risk assessment.

BY MS. WHEELER:

Q. All right. Dr. Millner, to kind of set the
stage for your opinions that you®ll give before this
Panel, you®"re aware that Frank Edwards, Hess*®
remediation expert, presented a plan last week with
testimony to the Panel that calls for remediation of
the soil at the site at issue iIn this case; and two of
the AOIls that are at issue call for a passive closure.
Are you aware of that?

A. Yeah. Yes, | am.

Q. Okay. And basically Mr. Edwards is
recommending passive closure of these sites because of
their sensitive nature, and that coming in and digging
up the constituents and removing them would pose more
harm to the vibrant marsh setting in which they
currently exist without a benefit.

Are you aware of that?

A. Yes. That"s not an uncommon thing to look
at.

Q. All right. And i1n addition to Mr. Frank
Edwards® testimony before the Panel last week, we heard

from Hess® expert ecotoxicologist, Dr. John Rodgers;

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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and he explained to the Panel that the risks to
ecological receptors leaving these two AOIs 1In a
passive closure was justified because you wouldn®t want
to destroy a vibrant marsh setting without
jJustification.

Are you aware of that?

A. Yes, I"m aware of that.

Q. All right. Now, to close the loop, you are
here to testify that there is no potential risk to
human health caused by the passive closures of AOIl 1
and 2; i1s that right?

A Yes, ma“am.

Q. Okay. Can you explain to the Panel how you
evaluated the risk at AOI 1 and 2?

A. Sure. It"s really pretty simple and
straightforward.

So the two chemicals at issue under 29-B that
we"re discussing iIs an exceedance of oil and grease and
true total barium. So 1 looked at the toxicity of both
of those, the barium and the elevated DRO at AOI 2.

And what 1 did is | took the available data and 1
compared 1t, you know, under RECAP, their health
screening criteria, went from a screening standard to
an MO-1 --

THE WITNESS: 1 don®"t know if that®s me or

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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whoever®s the --

THE HEARING OFFICER: That"s me.

THE WITNESS: |Is i1t yours?

THE HEARING OFFICER: 1"ve got hearing aids,
so I*"m going to try to turn them down.

THE WITNESS: That"s okay. 1 thought i1t was
me.

So I looked at 1t both under an
industrial, a residential, and a recreational
scenario, and | determined that there®s no
health risk from barium or TPH-DRO at both of
those locations, and simply it"s really not
an issue.

BY MS. WHEELER:

Q. And that®"s based upon the education,
experience, and training that you just talked about,
your 30 years of work in the field of toxicology as a
risk assessor; is that right?

A. Yes. And then applying the elements in RECAP
that 1 would have to rely on to form my opinion, yes.

Q. So what 1 want to do for the Panel now is
kind of walk through the two constituents that you
analyzed In doing the risk assessments.

Let"s start with true total barium which was
found, | understand, at both AOls 1 and 2.

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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Why i1s true total barium not a problem for
passive closure at these two AOIs?
A. Well, you know, barium -- essentially what 1

did 1s | looked at the two highest areas of true total
barium and I could not personally get to the A0l 1
because 1t was pretty much under water, so | went to
the second highest level. 1 took a soil sample and 1
sent i1t to a lab, and had x-ray diffraction of that
sample; and | determined that that compound is mostly
barium sulfate, or barite.

And as a toxicologist, 1t"s well known that
barium sulfate i1s essentially nontoxic because it"s not
absorbed by the body.

As an i1llustration of that, 1f you ever had
an x-ray or a CT scan, you"ve taken some liquid. That
liquid you get i1s barium sulfate, and you get it at a
concentration of about up to 810,000 milligrams per
kilogram, which 1s 81 percent.

So before you take your CAT scan, you“re
drinking an oral suspension of sodium sulfate to get
the contrast in the radiograph. So, you know, we know
in toxicology, it"s essentially nontoxic.

And so I looked at the barium method that"s
required under RECAP. The true total barium method is

obviously a more vigorous extraction, and so 1t will

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
225-292-8686 Docket ENV-L-2015-02



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Legacy Hearing Volume I
November 16, 2015

384

always take out more barium than the method that"s
required under RECAP.

Q. I understand that you ran and x-rayed a
fraction test to verify that the form of barium at the
site iIs barite. Is that right?

A Correct.

Q. Can you explain to the Panel where that test
was and what 1t 1s and why it supports your conclusion
that true total barium iIs not an issue here?

A. Well, yeah. | mean, because, like I just
said, as a toxicologist, the form of barium iIs very
important, whether it"s a soluble species or an
insoluble. And in this case | determined i1t was an
insoluble species; so essentially it can"t be absorbed
by the body, so it really can"t exert any kind of
toxicological effect.

I also even looked at i1t assuming it was; and
also determined that, even iIf it was, iIt"s going to
also screen out under RECAP®"s MO-1. Industrial and
residential, they both screen out.

Q. So, as | understand it, in addition to
analyzing i1t as barite, you also looked for
completeness at the form as true barium and you found
that 1t posed no risk in that form to human health; 1is

that correct, at the site?

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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A. No. I -- a little switch In the way you
asked the question.
I didn™"t assume it was true total barium.
That®"s not the method that RECAP, as a risk assessor 1in
toxicology. You look at the method that is required
under RECAP and I used those values, not the true total

barium value.

Q. Total barium, not true total barium.
A. Correct.
Q. I apologize.

And you analyzed this under an industrial and
a nonindustrial standard, and it met both of the
criteria; correct?

A Correct.

Q. Okay. So based upon your analysis from a
toxicological standpoint, leaving the barite at AOIs 1
and 2 will not pose a human health risk, and there®s no
justification for digging up that site, Is that
correct, to remove that barite?

A. Correct, there®s really no health reason to
remove i1t.

Q. All right. So let"s next turn to the oil and
grease that was found at, 1 believe, AOl 1.

How did you analyze oil and grease from a

risk perspective to determine that that constituent at

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
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AOl 1 poses no risk to human health 1f left there and
not removed?

A. Well, 1™m sure as the panel®s aware, oil and
grease Is a generic method for hydrocarbons.

So 1 looked at the available fractionation
data and TPH-DRO data for AOl 1 and AOl 2, and we only
had one hit of -- we only had a hit of TPH-DRO at A0l 2
that would be above any type of screening standard.

So 1 looked at the fractionation data for
those samples and determined that the fractionation
data, which is the preferred method to look at health
risks -- because the generic method, the TPH-DRO,
doesn®t tell you anything about risk because you have
no idea what the constituents are. So that®"s why you
look at the fractionation approach.

And when 1 did, the fractionation approach is
below either a RECAP MO-1, industrial or residential.

Q. Okay. Now, you mentioned -- and the panel-s
heard a lot about fractionation for TPH. This is a
universally accepted methodology; is that correct, and
Is preferred by RECAP?

A. Yeah. In fact, the new draft guidance that
Louisiana RECAP is putting out, they are getting
away -- totally eliminating the DRO, ORO, GRO fractions

and going straight to fractionation methods. 1It"s not
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been finalized and -- but that"s where 1t seems to
appear that the agency is going.

But irregardless of that, as a
toxicologist/risk assessor, it"s clear you need to have
the fractionation data to render an opinion whether or
not 1t could pose a human health risk. Without that,
you have no way of knowing what it -- what 1t"s made up
of.

Q. All right. So based upon your analysis from
a toxicological standpoint and your experience iIn
toxicological risk assessments, leaving the oil and
grease at AOl 1 will not pose a risk to human health,
and there"s no justification for digging up that area;
iIs that right?

A. That"s correct.

Q. So, to kind of sum up: Based upon your
knowledge, education, and training for 30 or so years
and your background in toxicology, i1t"s your analysis
that none of the constituents at either AOl 1 pose a
risk to human health and, therefore, passive closure is
warranted from a human health perspective?

A. That®"s correct. Passive closure won*"t -- by
leaving the constituents iIn place, won"t pose a health
risk.

MS. WHEELER: 1 tender the witness.

Baton Rouge Court Reporters, LLC
225-292-8686 Docket ENV-L-2015-02



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Legacy Hearing Volume I
November 16, 2015

388

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. JONES:

Q. Dr. Millner, Glad Jones. Nice to see you
this morning. 1"ve got just a few minutes of questions
for you.

I want to be perfectly clear with our Panel
that, in connection with your expert opinions iIn this
case, you are using RECAP to justify violations of
regulations of 29-B. Correct?

A. No. What I was asked to do here is determine
whether the constituents present in AOlI 1 or AOl 2 pose
a health risk to humans.

Q. Yeah. Are you using RECAP iIn that exercise?

A. Yeah. |1"m using the elements of RECAP that
are necessary to arrive at that opinion.

Q. Okay. That"s what I wanted to be clear.
You"re using RECAP to arrive at your opinions in your
case, In part?

A. Well, RECAP and my expertise in toxicology:
Understanding the health effects of petroleum
hydrocarbons, understanding the basis for the various
standards, the fractionation standards such as -- you
know, I*1l1 give you an example. TPH --

Q. I don"t really need an example.

A. Okay .
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Q. I just -- I wanted to confirm that you were
using RECAP.

A. That"s one of the elements.

Q. Okay. All right.

Of course, you®"re welcome to do it i1f the

Panel wants to hear it, but I just wanted to confirm
you“"re using RECAP.

A. That"s one element, correct.

Q. Okay. So as a toxicologist, one of the
things 1s -- or two things that are really important is

that you rely upon data, sampling data, sent to a
qualified laboratory that®"s going to come back to you
and you determine that data.

Is that a fair statement?

A. That"s correct.

Q. You"re not one of those guess guys. You get
the data in and then you make certain conclusions; and
you come and testify before a Panel just like this
based upon data.

A Correct.

Q. Okay. The other thing that®"s important is
that the data be taken In the right place when you®re
analyzing and rendering opinion about a particular
area; i1s that right?

A. Correct.
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Q. All right. Well, let"s start with location.
The fact of the matter is this barium X-ray
and fraction test that you"re talking about, you did
not take in either AOI 1 or AOl 2. Correct?
A. Right. I told the Panel that I couldn"t get
to AOI 1.
Q. You said you couldn®t get to AOI 1.
A. But the second highest wasn®"t at AOl 2; it
was at an offsite location.
Q. I appreciate that. Let me just ask my
question.
You did not take the x-ray and fraction test
In the areas that you"re suggesting do not pose any
type of human risk and, therefore, should be passively
closed. You went and took the fraction test somewhere
way away from those two areas.

I just want to confirm that.

A. That®"s correct.
Q. Likewise, you submitted your report in this
case -- when did you submit all of your opinions that

you"re giving today? Sometime In May; correct, may of
2015?

A. 1"d have to look at the date, but that"s
approximately correct.

Q. Somewhere around May or June. 1°m not trying
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to hold you to the exact time.

In May or June, you have a whole lot of data
from GHD, ICON, that you were relying on, just like
where 1 started: The data that you rely upon for your
opinions. Correct?

A Correct.

Q. And 1t"s that data that you had prior to
Issuing your report sometime in May or June that are
allowing you to provide this opinion about what the
current conditions are of the site; correct?

A Correct.

Q. You have not provided any supplemental report
since you"ve submitted that report in May or June. 1In
other words, all the data that you were going to rely
upon you had iIn your possession back In April, May, or
June, leading up to your report. Correct?

A Correct.

Q. All right. You have not since then submitted
an addendum to your report; correct?

A. I have not. But the CRA/GHD folks have.

Q. Yeah, they have.

And you have not provided any additional
information about any additional report after yours;
correct? In May or June?

A. Are you asking me 1f 1 did one?
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Yeah.
No, 1 have not.

You have not done an addendum?

> O » O

Correct.

Q. Right. AIll this testimony that you"ve been
giving i1s about what the data you had back in May or
June; correct?

A Correct.

Q. All right. You are aware that, on
October 23, 2015, Mr. Edwards and GHD now, formerly

CRA, submitted an addendum. Correct?

A Yes.

Q. And you are aware that the purpose of that
addendum 1s -- we can read it right out of his
letter -- "GHD submits this addendum to provide for the

collection of additional analytical data to confirm
delineation of constituents.”

You®"re aware of that?

I am.

All right. Have you seen this letter before?

> O >

I have.

Q. Okay. Let"s go to the -- let"s go to the
next slide, please.
Now, you"re aware that In Louisiana, under

Chapter 6 here, that "Each plan shall fully delineate
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the vertical and horizontal extent of the environmental
damage™? You"re aware of that being a regulatory
requirement; correct?
A Yes.
Q. Okay. Let"s go to the next one.
This 1s the risk evaluation.

Let"s go two more and then we®"ll come back to

that.

Yeah.

All right. So let"s go, let"s go here to AOI
1. This i1s one of the areas that you wanted to -- that

your testimony iIs presents no health risks and we ought
to be able to passively close this. Right?

A That"s correct.

Q. All right. Have you seen the new sampling
proposed pre-excavation for AOlI 1 that Mr. Edwards has
proposed?

A. I didn"t look at those locations. | didn"t
look at the locations where he®"s proposing to do that.

Q. Well, did you know before you came and
offered this Panel some testimony this morning about
what the health consequences were going to be of this
particular AOlI 1 site, that Mr. Edwards has proposed to
do samples on constituents under 29-B that he has never

done before in this case? Were you aware of that, yes
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or no?

A. Aware that he®"s asked for constituents that
he"s never tested before?

Q. Correct, In AOIl 1.

A. I didn"t --
Q. Were you aware of that?
A. I didn"t compare what -- | did not compare

what he i1s proposing this time for what was done last
time, so I haven® ™t -- 1 can"t really answer that
question.

1*d have to go look at what they did last
time versus what they did this time to be able --

Q. Well, 1*m going to represent to you that each
one of these samples in AOl 1, which you just told the
Panel poses no human health risk whatsoever, each one
of these samples -- there are six of them -- represent
sampling of constituents that have never been tested
for inside of AOl 1 before. Are you aware of that?

A. Well, 1 think you just asked -- I"m not
trying to dodge your question. | haven®t compared what
was done first versus what was second to be able to
answer that question.

Q. Did you know he was going to go out and take
six more samples of constituents after --

A. I don"t --
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Q. Hold on.
-- after you rendered your opinions based
upon the data you had back in May or June?
A. Yeah. He"s going to go out there and sample

before excavation -- I mean, I"m sorry, not before
excavation. He"s just going to go out to do some
confirmatory testing to determine whether the true
total barium that you have i1s going -- iIs barite or
barium sulfate.

Q. Oh, no, sir. That"s not what he testified --

A. Well, that"s one thing he®"s doing.

Q. Well, 1t may be one thing; but that"s not
what he testified he"s going to do.

All of these are going to be a whole suite of
29-B samples, of which have never been tested in AOI 1
before.

Are you -- do you know that?

A. I"m not -- like I said, | didn"t compare the
suite done the fTirst time against the suite that he"s
proposing here to be able to answer you.

Q. In AOl 1 you looked at the analytical data
related to barium; correct?

A Correct.

Q. Right. You didn"t look at it with regard to

cadmium or oil and grease or any other parameters;
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correct?

A. No. || looked at every -- | looked at all the
constituents that were detected at AOl 1 and AOl 2 and
ran through a screening process in my report.

Q. Well, do you know what was detected in A0l 1
in the first round?

Are you aware that the only thing he tested
for was barium iIn this site?

A. 1"d have to go back and look at my report to
see what exactly was tested for at AOlI 1 the first
time.

Q. With regard to these six samples, you know
that these samples have not been gathered, nor have

there been any data back for them; correct?

A Correct.
Q. IT those samples come back and they say
something -- i1f they have a hit or they say something

different than the original samples, you would like to
see that data before you offered any expert opinion in
this case; right?

A. well —-

Q. Didn®t you tell me 1t"s important for you to
have data with regard to your conclusions?

A. Yeah. I mean, I would -- 1 would look at the

data and see if i1t changes my opinions. |1 mean, that
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would be not uncommon.

Q. Right. And you have no idea what this data
IS going to show; correct?

A. Well, 1™m pretty sure it"s going to show the
same thing, but --

Q. Well, but you told me earlier that you"re not
one of those guessing guys. You get data and then you

make decisions; right?

A. well --

Q And you make conclusions --

A Yes.

Q -— and opinions based upon the data that

comes from the sampling; right?
A Yeah.
MR. JONES: Okay. Well, let"s go -- let"s go
to AOl 2, the next one, Connie, please.
Q. Are you aware that Mr. Edwards Is proposing
to take approximately 12 to 15 additional samples for a
Tfull suite of 29-B parameters at A0l 2?
A. I knew there was -- 1 didn"t know the number
was 12, but | knew there that ...
Q. Well, are you aware that he"s planning on
taking over, over 10 -- well, 1 think he took eight
before, and he®s now proposing to take 12. Are you

aware of that?
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A. I think 1 tried to answer 1t. 1 was trying
to tell you, 1 didn"t know the exact number --
Q. Right.
A. -— but I knew he was taking more samples.
Q. well, likewise, you"ve got -- you have no
1dea what this sampling result -- what the sample

results here in AOl 2 are going to be that he proposed
on October 23rd, 19 -- excuse me, 2015. Right?

A Correct.

Q. All right. So you have -- you really, you
really -- there will be more -- is It a correct
statement to say that there will be more sampling done
in this particular case that you as a toxicologist
expert would like to review before you conclude, based
upon the data, that there"s no human health risk posed
here? Correct?

A Let me try to answer it this way.

Q.- 1"d like you to answer it my way first. And
then 1f you need me to explain my question, 1°11 be
happy to do that.

Do you understand the question?

MS. WHEELER: 1°d like to object to

Mr. Jones® harassing the witness. He can
answer --

MR. JONES: Well, 1t"s not harassing. 1°d
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like him to answer my question. That"s a

2 fundamental --

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: I think 1t"s a yes or
4 no question, and then you can explain your

> answer .

6 THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question?
7 THE HEARING OFFICER: 1 thought 1t was a yes
8 or no question. But try it again.

9 BY MR. JONES:

10 Q.- So you had -- well, let"s see.

11 You told me -- I1°11 do 1t again.

12 You told me when 1 first started asking you

13 | questions that you would do two things: One, you get
14 | data and you render opinions on that. You"re not one
15| of those guessing guys. And two, it"s important that
16 | that data comes from the right geographical area so
17| that you can apply i1t correctly.

18 A Correct.
19 Q. Correct?
20 A Correct.
21 Q.- All right. We now know that they are going

22 | to take some dozen or so additional samples in the
23 exact geographic area that you"re proposing poses no
24 human health risk. Correct?

25 A. Correct.
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Q. You do not have that data as you“"re sitting
here today.
A Correct.
Q.- Correct?
A Correct.

Q. All right. Now, 1If you"re a data-driven guy
and your opinions are based upon real-time results that
come back from samples that are taken, you have no i1dea
what these are going to be.

And before you offer -- the results are going
to be. And before you offer your testimony, to be
consistent with being a data-driven guy, you need to
know what the answers are to the -- what the results
are of these samples. Yes or no?

A Yes.

Q. And the same thing would be true with AOI

Number 1; correct?

A. Correct.
Q. Yeah.
A. I mean, you can®t talk about something you

don"t have data for.

Q. Yeah. And that same thing would be true for
AOl 3, 4, 5, and 6, and 7 and 8 and 24 1f we"ve got
additional sampling proposed --

A. Correct.
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Q. -—- so we can end this testimony quickly,
instead of me having to go through all of those?

A. Correct.

Q. All right.

A. IT there®"s more data and I don"t have the
results, | can"t, I can"t tell you what It means.

Q. Well, so we know that there®s at least 25 or

30 samples coming in, and you have no 1dea what that
data 1s going to be. So how can you come In here to a
Panel and say, "'Here"s my opinion."

You knew all these samples were going to be
taken before you took that stand this morning, did you
not?

A. I knew that the other samples were going to
be taken. And I can testify about the existing data
and what 1t says.

Q. But, sir, we"re talking about existing data
when you knew there"s 30 or 40 or 50 more samples
coming on this particular site. And you“re a
data-driven guy, that has to be taken from the
geographical area, and you"re still offering these
opinions?

A That"s correct. And they"re valid opinions.

Q.- Yeah. Well, okay.

Well, they may be valid opinions based upon
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the data you had at the time. But you don®"t know
whether they®re valid decisions based upon your
testimony just a moment ago. You don®"t know whether
it"s valid until all these samples come back. That"s
what you just told me; right?

A. I can"t tell -- when the data comes back from
that, then 1711 look at 1t to determine whether it
affects my opinion In one way or another.

Q. Yeah. But your opinion based upon the data
you had before i1s i1t"s all fine. But you have idea
what this i1s going to be. So would you like to
schedule this again In January and come back and offer
what your opinion iIs then?

A I can.

Q. Great. All right. Maybe we"ll do that.

All right. Let"s go back to RECAP. Let"s go
back to RECAP that we skipped just a moment ago.

All right. And 1 think -- 1 don"t need to
spend a whole lot of time with this.

But you are aware that, under RECAP, when you
start using RECAP, you cannot composite samples to find
the delineation of the horizonal and vertical extent of
contamination; right?

A. That®s not correct.

Q- You can?
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A Yeah.

Q. You think that"s a good practice?

A. That"s what we did with the entire Murphy Oil
spill with the --

Q. Who were you working for then?

A. Working for Murphy Oil and working with the
DEQ-approved plan.

We had -- we used a composite sampling
program to, to -- for properties. We absolutely do
composites.

Q. All right. Okay. All right. So you think
iIt"s okay under RECAP to do composite sampling to
define the horizontal and vertical extent of the
contamination.

A. I think --

Q. Simple enough, 1f that®"s your position.
A. You can --
Q. You"re aware there®s another section in RECAP

that says you"re not supposed to do that; correct?

A. You can do, you can do composite, and you can
do single points to delineate. You can do both.

Q. Which one do you think Is more accurate about
the condition of the property? As a good scientist
that wants to be intellectually honest with the state

agency, which one of them really tells you where the
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extent of the contamination is, delineation or
composite samples?
A. Well, it depends --

Q. Or, excuse me, the screening or composite --
A. It depends on what the question you“re
asking.

IT you"re asking me as a toxicologist what 1
prefer to determine health risk, 1 want the most
representative sample of the site. And so if | take
one sample of a 220-acre site here, and that"s really
high, and all these other ones are low, that one high
one Is not representative of the health risk. What
would be representative iIs the entire site.

So the answer to your guestion, it depends on
what question you"re asking. In my opinion, a lot of
times composite sampling gives you a better
representation of what"s present at that site.

Q. All right. Good. Thank you for that.

Let"s go -- have you looked at any of the
aerial photographs In this case? Because | saw you“ve
got a lot of experience with environmental toxicology
and health toxicology.

MS. WHEELER: Object --

MR. JONES: Whoa. Whoa. |If you"re going to

object to his tender, he"s a -- let me -- you
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said risk assessment, too.

MS. WHEELER: This 1s beyond the scope of his
opinion.

MR. JONES: Beyond the scope? It"s cross
examination.

MS. WHEELER: You didn*t --

THE HEARING OFFICER: 1 think it"s beyond the
scope.

MR. JONES: Beyond the scope?

He®"s an expert in a case with experience
in —— 1"m going to ask him the obvious
question that | asked Mr. Edwards: Do you
see these photographs? Have you looked at
them? And do you have an opinion as to
whether or not the operations on this
property had an impact on the environment of
this property?

MS. WHEELER: Mr. Balhoff, 1t"s beyond the
scope.

THE HEARING OFFICER: That"s beyond the
scope. | sustain the objection.

MR. JONES: Beyond the scope?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

MR. JONES: That i1s completely unfair.

You know that when you have cross
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BY MS. WHEELER:

Q.-

examination of a witness and that witness
takes the stand, and he has the ability and
the broadness, 1"m entitled to ask him those
questions. You®"re not limited by scope In a
Cross examination.

IT we"re looking at the rules of
evidence, that i1s a ridiculous call.

THE HEARING OFFICER: He®"s been under cross
examination, and you®ve been cross-examining
him, for example, about data on this addendum
that"s coming In. That"s fair cross
examination.

You"re asking him about a photograph
back 1n 1941. That"s totally outside the
scope of what he"s been on this stand
testifying about.

I sustain the objection.

MR. JONES: All right. Well, note my
objection.

It"s a bad one.

All right. 1°m done.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Just a few points.

Mr.